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ndependent Auditors Report

To the Members of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited (the
“Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and
other explanatory information. :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act” in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the -Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibififies for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate tc provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

 The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors’ report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report{s) thereon. ‘

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

forrmrof-assurance conciosion thereomn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsihility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have Performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
-of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Aat This responsibifity also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
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Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
_ irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

fn preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company'’s ability o continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
& material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with

“reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveniess of such controls.
* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

~*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the '
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maiters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

safeguards.

a. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the
predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion on 30 April 2024,

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2A As

a.

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financiai
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”. '

“B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us

a.
d @)

(ii)

i)

The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including darivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have

~been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shalt directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The management has represented that, to the best of knowledge and belief, no funds have been
recelved by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties"}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company

- shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the period.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

€. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

fn our opinion and according t6 the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director is not in excess of the limit iaid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

%%LV

E ' Amrit Bhansali

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 065155
Date: 30 April 2025 ' ICAT UDIN:25065155BMLBXE3639
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report qh Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

() (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper recards showing fufl particulars, including quantitative

(B)
(i) (b)

()

(d)

(e)

(ii) (a)

{b)

(iify

iy

. loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185

(v}

(vi)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovabie property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any -benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company. '

According to the information and éxplanalions given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantes or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

‘According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. :

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accardingly, clause 3{v) of the Order Is hot applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(vii) {(a)

(b}

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the any of the
services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with
the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Income tax, Employee State Insurance and other statutory dues.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating fo Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, or Cess and any other material statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount {in Period to Forum where
statute dues INR miilion) which the | dispute is pending
amount
relates
Income tax Act | Disallowance u/s | 3.04 2017-18 Commissioner of
14A of I.T. Act income Tax
(Appeals), Patna
Income tax Act | Disallowance  of | 4.08 2020-21 Commissioner of
SEWA Income . Tax
Contributlon  and (Appeals), Patna
provident fund
Income tax Act | Disallowance for | 13.37 2021-22 Assessing Ofﬂcer',.
provision for bad Income Tax, Patna
and doubtful debts
Finance Demand on service | 1.20 201112 CESTAT, Bangalore
1 Act, 1994 fax on training fee o . .
Finance Ineligible ITC | 22.45(1.68)* | 2016-17 CESTAT, Kolkata
Act, 1894 claimed
Goods  and | Ineligible ITC | 0.51 2017-18 Additional
Service Tax | claimed Commissioner State
Act, 2017 Tax (Appeals),
Bhubaneshwar
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions. Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

Name of the Nature of the Amount {in Period to Forum where
statute dues INR million) which the | dispute is pending
amount
relatgs
Goods and | ineligible ITC | 1.03 July - 2017 | Commissioner
Service Tax | claimed To Mar | (Appeals),
Act, 2017 2022 Bangalore
Goods  and | Excess ITC ; 0.22 2019-20 Superintendent,
Service Tax | claimed Bangalore
Act, 2017
ESIC Act Failure to pay ESI | 52.07 : 2015-16 High court,
{18.05* Bengaluru

*amounts mentioned in brackets are payment made under protest.

(viii)

(i) (a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

M

0@

®)

i) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of Ioans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defauiter by any
bank or financial institution or government ar government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financiai statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or persan on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further pubtic offer

(including debl instruments). Accordingly, ctause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

{b)

{©)
(xii)

(xiii)

. (xiv) (@)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (&)
()
{c)

(d
{xvii)
(xviii)

{xix}

has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rute
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Crder is not applicable.

'n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business. :

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 1o its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause

. 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial. statements, .our knowledge of the Board. of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the

-assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to belive that any material

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capablé of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to

' the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up

(xx)

to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our apinion and acéording to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx}{b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 .

oF L’/

Amtrit Bhansali

_ Fartner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 0685155
Date: 30 April 2025 ICAl UDIN:25065155BMLBXE3639
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)i) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SMC Integrated
Facility Management Solutions Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial confrols with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal conirol stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {the “Guidance Note™).

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

- criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in‘accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whelher adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
slalements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statemenits and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controis with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
~weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
' Page 10 of 11
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited for the period
ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

provide reasonabie assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally ‘accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasocnable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the rigk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248WAN-100022

s

Amrit Bhansali

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 065155
Date: 30 April 2025 ' ICAI UDIN:25065155BMLBXE3639
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SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million except share data

Balance Sheet
Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As atMarch 31, 2024
A |ASSETS
Non — current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 - 38127 31313
Other intangible assets 5 138 064
Intangible assets under development 5 874 -
Finarcial assets
(i) Investments 6 638.72 605.25
{ii) Loans TA - -
(i) Other financial assets 7 873 174.38
Deferred taxassets (net) 8 E80.71 171.92
Income tax assets (net) 8 [37.99 141.82
Other non — curreat assets 9 - -
Total non — current asseis 1.456.12 1,407.14
Current assets
Inventories 10 225 370
Financial assets
(i) TInvestments -6 - 50.00
(i) Trade receivables 3 1,239.50 1,081.7¢
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents 12 117.71 216
(iv) Bankbalances other than (iii} above 12 374.90 13215
(v} Loans TA - 17.00
(vi} Other financial assets 7 720.11 725.06
Other current assets 9 66.35 85.15
Total current assets 2,520.82 2,i16.93
Total assets 3,976.94 3,524.07
B [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital : ‘ 13 195.13 195.13
Other equity 14 1,703.32 1,490.55
Total equity 1,898.45 1,685.68
Liahilities
Non — corrent liahilities
Finan cial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 281.20 232.65
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 11.73 287
Provisions 20 60.14 48.19
Total non-current liabilities : ' 353.07 283.71




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million except share data

Balance Sheet (continued)

Particalars Note Ne. As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Current liahilitics
Financial liabilities .
(i) Bomowings 15 §28.51 793.56
(i) Lease Liabilities 16 4.38 0.03
(if) Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 17 2296 1873
() Total outstamfiing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 17 . 7396 70.00
and small enterprises
(iif) Other current financial liahilities 18 542.04 48898
Other current liabilities 21 188.12 130.02
Provisions - 2 66,E5 5336
Total current liabilities 1,725.42 1,554.68
Total liahitities ) 2,078.4% 1,838.39
Total equity and liahilites 3,976.94 3,524.07
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. ’
As per our report of even date
ForBSR& CO.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of directors -

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration. No. 101248W/W-10022)

v

CA' Amrit Bhansali Riwli Sinha W
Pariner Managing Directo Director .

Membership No. 065155 ) {DIN: 05124030) (DIN: 00477256)
Place: Bangalore ' Place: Singapore Place: New Delhi
Date: April 30,2025 Date: Aprif 28,2025 Date: Apeil 28,2025

Brajesh Kumar
Chief firancial officer Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 28,2025 Date: April 28,2025




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR millian except shore dota

Statement of Profit and Loss

§ No {Particulars Note No. Yoar ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Income
: a) Revenue from operations 22 6,973,89 6,620 83
b) Other income 23 44.21 3357
¢) Other gain/(loss) 24 1.44 {11.59)
Total lcome (at b) 7,019.54 6,642.81
Expenses
a) Cost of materals consumed 25 209.28 216.69
b) Changes in inventorics 25A £45 3.17)
2 c) Employee benefits expense 26 589027 5,566.97
d) Finance costs 27 11122 127.15
¢) Depreciation and amertization expenses 28 78.09 63.26
f) Other expenses 29 526.54 519.58
Total expenses (a+b+c+d+e) 6,816.85 6,490.48
3 |Profi¢/(loss) before tax and exceptional items (1-2) 202.69 15233
4 |Bxceptional items ' - -
5 |Profiti(loss) before tax (3+4)___ 5 S . 202.69 152.33
6  |Tax expense - -
a) Curment tax g - -
b) Deferred tax 8 9.12) 96.93
Taotal tax expense (9.12) 96.93
7  [Profit/{loss) for die year (5-6) 211.81 55.40
8 |Oither comprehensive incaome
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Re-measurement of defined benefits plan 26 1.29 4.37
b) Income taxrelating to these items 8 (0.33) {1.10)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) 0.96 3.27
9 |Total comprehensive income for the year (7+3) 21277 58.67
10 |Eamings per share (EPS) (face value INR 10 per share) 30
(a) Basic (INR) 10.85 284
(b) Diluted {INR) 8.48 227
11 [Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share 30
(a) Basic (Nos.) 19,512,800 19,512,800
{b) Diluted (Nos.) 24,412,800 24,412,800

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For BSR & CO.LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration. No. 101248W/W-10022)

For and on behalf of the Board of divectors

—~ szljf" v
V4

CA it Bhansali
Partner
Membership No, 065155

‘Place: Bangalore e e
Date: April 30,2025

Riwli Sinha
Managing Director
(DIN: 05124090)

- Place: Singapore
Date: Apeil 28,2025

Brajesh Kumar
Chief financial officer

Place: New Delhs
Date: Apwil 28, 2025

Director

eﬁ'_"-—mtmn;aj Kishore Sigha

(DIN: 00477256)

- Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28,2025

Conpany Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28,2025




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unfess stoted otherwise

Statement of Changes in Equity

A.  Equity share capital
Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

Balance as at
April 1,2023

the year

Changes during

Balance as at March
31,2024

Equity share capital

195.13

195.13

Year ended March 31, 2025

Balance as at

Changes during

Balance as at March

Particulars X
April 1,2024 the year 31,2025
Equity share capital 165,13 19513
B, Other equity
Year ended March 31, 2024
Reserves and surplus
. Erity
) Fruity component of Pl i
Particulars Securities Retained earnings fimancial insrument contribuatian by Total ather equity
premium parent
As at April 1, 2023 937.50 61436 3011 1684 1,598.81
Prafit / (loss) for the year - 55,40 . . ) 5540
Other comprehensive income / loss) - 327 - - 327
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year - 58.67 - - 58.67
Fair value adjustment of corporate guarantee provided by _ _ R 283 283
parent
Fitzal / Interin dividends - {169.76) - - (169.76)
As at March 31,2024 937.50 503.27 30.11 19,67 1490.55
Year ended March 31, 2025
Reserves and surplus .
e Freity
Particulars * Securities Eq!.ut):co.mmnent of contribution by Toizl other equity
i Retained earnings financial instrument "
premium paren
As at April 1,2024 93750 503.27 30.11 19.47 149055
Profit / (loss) for the year - 211.81 - - 211,81
Other comprehensive income / (Joss) - 0.96 - - 0.96
‘Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 212.77 - - 212,77
Fair value adfnstment of carperate guarantee provided by - B - K SREE IEEEEE
parent ) ) B
Final / Tnterim dividends . - - - -
-JAs atMarch 31,2025 BERETE 71604 T T 1,70332

As per our report of even date

For BS R& CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration. No. [01248W/W-10022)

cdy

CA Amrit Bhans ali
Partner
Membership Neo. 065155

" Place: Bangalore

Date: April 38,2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For and ont behalf of the Board of directors

Rivli Sinka _
Managing Dircctor
(DIN: 05124090)

P[ar.:e:.S.ilig.aInre
Date: Apwil 28, 20235

Brajeskh Kumar
Chief financial officer

Plave: New Dethi
Date: Amil 28,2025

T Kishore Sinha
Director
(DIN: 00477256)

. .Place: .N.c.w ﬁcl!ﬁ .
Date: April 28, 2025

IR

jivaKumar Kaddo
Company Secretary

Place: New Deltil
Date: April 28,2025




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR milfion, unless stated otherwise

Statement of Cash Flows

. Year ended
S No|Particulars
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
A. [CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss ) before tax 202.69 152.33
Adjusted for:
. |Depreciation and amortiztion expenses 78.09 63.26
Unrealised Foreign exchange {gain)/ loss . 0.08
Net (gain}/ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {L44)| - [.51
Finance costs 111.22 12715
Tnterest income (44.21) (33.57)
Allowance for expected credit loss - 34.50
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 346.35 355.26
Movement in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade recefvables {157.79) 8.22
Decrease / (increase) in inventories L.45 (3.18)
Decrease / (increase) m other current assets 18.80 (18.77)
Decrease/(increase} in loans and advances 17.00 -
...... Digereass / (increase) in ether curront financial ase ete 393 (37.10)
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 749 770
(Decrease)/ increase in provisions 26.03 37.98
(Decrease)/ increase i other current liabilities ' 5810 (58.13)
{Decrease)/ increase in other current financial lmbilities 4993 56.64
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current financial assets 3.35 . 218
Cash (usedin) / generated from operations 37464 350.80
Direct tax (paid), rict of refunds 333 102.20
Net cash inflow /! (outflow) from operating activitics 378.47 453.00
B. |CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase .omepcrty, plant & equipment and intangible assets (including Capitai work in (135.62) 12t22)
progress/intangible assets under development)
Proceeds fromsale / disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.43 222
Investment in Bank Deposits €646.51) (97.75)
Redemption of foed deposits 48798
Interest received 4126 50.24
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from inwesting activities (252.46) {166.51)
C. |CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIIS
Forcign exchange gain / (loss) realized - {0.08)
I'roceeds from term loans 138.75 127.06
Repayment of term loans (191.69) (52.94)
Interest paid (106.97) (119.66)
Dividends. paid.to-Company’s-shareholders -{(169.76)|---
Changes in lease liability {1.05) (4.22)
Net cosh inflow/ (outflow) from financing nctivitiea (163.96) {219.60)
D. |Netinerease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (37.95) 66.89
E |Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (669.21) {736.10)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) £107.16) (669.21)




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of the cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following; ) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 117.71 22,16
Cash credit (824.87) (691.37)
Bal a5 per s t of cash flows (707.16) (669,21)

Refer note 36 for reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date :

For BSR& CO.L1P . For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration. No. 101248W/W-10022) : Q QMK/
e —Rituraj-Kshore Sinftamm—————""""

CAlAmvrit Bhansali Riwli Sinha _

Pariner Managing Director Director

© Membership No. 065155 L I I L (DINOSIZA090) L (DIN: 00477256)
P!accBangalure : Place: Singapore Place: New Delbs
Date: April 30,2025 Date: April 28,2025 Date: April 28,2025

Brajesh Kumar
Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: April 28,2025 Date: April 28,2025




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Company overview

SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited (formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited) (“the Company™ CIN
1J90001BR2009PL.CO 14332 is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Tndia. Tts registered office is situated at Annapuma Bhawan,
Patliputra Telephone Exchange Road, Patna, Bihar — 800010, India, and its principal place of business is situated at Plot No. 11, 3rd Floor, DDA

Cornrmunity Center, Okhla Phase-I, New Delhi-110020.

The name of the Company has been changed to SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited from Service Master Clean Limited and a fresh
certificate of incorporation in the name of SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited was issued by Registrar of Companies on July 13,
2023,

The Company is engaged in rendering facility management services in the areas of cleaning and house-keeping services.
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the directors on April 28, 2025.

2. Summary of material accounting policies
This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial seaternents.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and comply in all material respects with the Ind-AS
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{8EBI). The Ind-AS are notified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended

from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (TNR) and are rounded off to the nearest miliions (“Mn’) except per share data and unless stated
otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the decument may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely
reflect the absolute figures. The figures which are appearing as *0”are result of rounding off.

2.2 Basis of measurement

“Thie fitdncial Statemaents havé begi prépared hder the HistoTical et Esnventioh of An dcehial atd: goifg" Contetn  basis, except for tha itéms Whare the™
relevant Ind AS requires the financial instruments to be classified as fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”) and are measured at fair value, including

the following material items:
a) certain financial assets and financial liabilities (incleding derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured az fair value;
b) assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;

¢} share based payments; and

d) The defined benefit asset/{liability) which is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.
¢) Liability in respect of forward contract/ call and put eptions for acquisition of Non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

) Contingent liability and indemnification of asset acquired in a business combination are measured at fair value

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. Further, previous year figures have been
regrouped/re-arranged, wherever necessary.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and division [l of schedule
11T of the Companies Act 2013, For the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the staternents of profit and loss and balance sheet. These items
are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable ot required.

Fair value measurement
The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company determines fair value based on the price it
waould receive fo sell an asset or pay to transfer 2 liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the

principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

_Eairvalue hierarchy e e e e e

Level 1 - Quored prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using
quoted pnces ’l'l-us mcludes hsted equlty mstrurnents, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have quoted prlce Thc falr value of all : B

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices 1ncludcd within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, elther directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived frnm nnceq) aiue of fi nanclal instrumenis that are nnt tradcd i dftt-rrnmed usmgvaluatwn techmques

which maxim

fair valug an mstrumcm are ohsewabie the mstmment is mcluded in level 2

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in levet 3.
In accordance with Ind-AS 113, ‘Fair value measurement’, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following vatuation techniques:

(i)  Market approach — Prices and other relevant inf‘ormation generated by market transactions involving ideatical or comparable assets or
liabilities.

(if) Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using the discounting method.

 (iii) Cost approach — Replacement cost method,

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is;
{iy  Txpeoted to he realised or intended to be s0ld or consumed in the normal operating oyole;

(i)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iit) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) Cash or cash cquivalent unless the assct is restricted from being exchanged or used to setife a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period;

All other assets are classified as non-corrent.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (continued)

A liability is current when:

{1)  Itisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(ii)  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It is due to be setiled within $welve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) There is no urconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

(v)  Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity mstmmr:nts do net affect its

classification.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and [iabilities.

The operating cy<ie is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Aa item is recognised as an asset, if and onfy if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and its

cost can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as
capital wotk- in- progress {*CWIP").

Items of property, plant and equipment {‘PPE’) and CWTP are initially recognised at cost. Frechold land is carried at historical cost. All items of property,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, asset retirement
obligation and cost directly attributable towards bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of 2 qualifying asset are'capitalised
as part of the cost,

..Subsequent expenditure related to.an item of property, plant and equipment is.added to.its carrying value or.recognised.as. a.separate ASset, 48 APTTOPIIALE, - mmrmomooe e

only when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item, will flow to the Group. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other expenses on existing items of property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repairs, maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are recognised in the statement of profit and 1oss in the
year during which such expenses are incurred.

Advances given towards purchase of an item of property, plant and equipment or CWIP outstanding as at each balance sheet date are disclosed under
other non-financial assets.

Depreciation
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful Lives using wmten down value method from the date, the assets are
available for use.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Category Useful life

Buildings 60 years

Plant and machinery 15 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or lease period
Computer equipmesnt 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Vehicles 8 years

Based on technical assessment, the useful. lives as given above best represent the period aver which the management expects to use these assets. The-

estimated useful lives for these asseis may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part € of Schedule I of the Companics Acl 2013,

" The residual values are generally not more than % of the origénal cost of the asset. The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are tevicwed at cach financial year-cnd and adjusted prospectively, i appropriate.

Where, during any financia! year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, discarded, demelished or destroyed, or

SIgmﬁcant compcmcnr.s rcplaced deprematlon on such assets :s calculatcd ona pro rata basis as mdwrdua.l assets. with spemﬁc usefin] dife from the month

Derecopaition

An item of property, plant and cquipment and any mgmﬁca.nt part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benelils
are expected from its use or disposal Any uain vs loss arising on derecognilion of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the satement of profit and luss when e assel is desecognised,

‘c) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, and it is probable that fitture economic benefits attributed to the asset wilk flow to
...the Company and the cost of the asset can.be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial ecognition at- historical
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Fotlowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amertisation and aceumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised software development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the

expenditure is incurred.
Sulseyuent expenditure is capitalized only when 1t increases the probable turure eeonomie benetits from the specific asset to which it refates.
The useful livés of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic

life on a straight line method assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite usefuf life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise
Notes to the financiai statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025 (continued)

expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic berefits embodied in the asset are accounted by modifying the amortisation
period or methad, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated usefut lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Category . Useful life
| Computer software 5 years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Software
Costs incursed in developing products or systems and costs incurred i acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to future period financial

benefits through revenue generation andfor cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems, Costs capitalised include external direct costs of
malerials, services, and direct payroll and related costs of employees' time spent on the project.

License & franchise
Licenses & franchise fees are amortized commencing from the date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, associztes and joint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an investee entity when it is exposed to,or has rights to variable
retumns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

An associate i3 an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not contral or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and
59% of the voting rights. . . R S T T T S At

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
" venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activitics
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is accounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any. The said investments are tested for
impairment whenever cireumstances indicate that their carrying value may excéed the recoverable amount.

e) Financial instroments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one eatity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

_ Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction

costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that zequire delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.¢., the date that the Company commits

to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
... 0T purposes of subsequeni measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories:
(i)  Financial assets ot amortised cost
(i)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
(1)  Financial assets, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial instruments at amortised cost
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
()} Theasset is held within o husiness madel whnse ohjective is ta hold assets for collecting contractunl cash flows, and

ont ot ¥ 0 ) eI o<as o

-ameunt outstanding.

Adfter initigl measurement, such financial assets are subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the
rule thal exaclly diseounts estimated fture cash reecipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for cxample,
prepayments, extensions call and similar aptions) but daes not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost i3 caleulated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income based on EIR is included as interest
income as a part of other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in profit or loss, A gain or loss on
such financial asset which is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVYTOCI

A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

(i)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Tinancial assets inehuded within thie FVTOOT catrpory are measured as ac each reporting dare at fakr value, Fair value movements are recognized in the
ether comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes intercst income caleulated using the [R method, impairment losses & reversals
il foreign exchunge gain or 1oss in the proflt of logs. On derecopnilion of the agsel, cutnulaiive gan or loss previously reengmsed i (8 18 reclassificd
from equity to profil or loss,




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR milfion, uniess stated otherwise
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (continued;

Financial assets at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which daes not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate & financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However,
such election is made only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch®}.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss in respect of such assets
that are not part of a hedging relationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement of profit and Joss within ather
gains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of [nd-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election 10 present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes suck
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevecable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as 2t FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrament, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCT. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the statement of profic and loss within
other gains/lasses in the period in which it arises.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset {or; where applicable, a part of 3 financial asset or partof a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derécogrised (.¢. rénioved

{tonm the Corsprany s Idunee shiel) when:

(i)  Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(if)  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without matetial delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.
Similarly, where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances on a forward-looking basis using the expected credit foss (ECL ) model for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables witk no significant firancing component. For 21l other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. How the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statements. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measarement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, bon’omngs payables or as derivatives

-~designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financizl liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

""The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payal.:ile.s,' loans and borrowings iﬁcluding bank overdrafts, financial gua.raj'ltee contracts and
derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

fat Tiabititi el classification, as descr clow,

Financial Habiiltes at fair value throngh profic or doss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financ:al liabilities held for trading and financiai liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or Joss. Financial liabilities are ctassified as held for trading #f they are incurred for the purpose of

repurchasing in the near lerm, This category also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Company that are not designated

as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by [nd-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
" they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recogmised 1 the profit or loss.

Finaneial Habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if

the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
“récognizéd in OCIL. These gains/lasses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or

loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the

redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss aver the perind of the borrowing using the ETR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities

are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent itis probable that some or alt of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred

until the draw dewn occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised

as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the factlity to which it relates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeemable are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, to the extent such dividends
are mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or [oss as finance costs,
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The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference share
ar compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares where the price of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed,

is determined using a market rate of interest for an equivalent non-convertible bond, This amount is recorded as a liability on an amertised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound financial
instrument. This (s recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

When the terms of a financial liability are renegotéated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a lizbility (debt for
equity swap), a gain or loss i3 recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial lizbility and
the fair value of the equity instrument issued.

Borrowings are classified as current ligbilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Fability for at least 12 months
after the reporting peried. Where there is a breach of a matetial provision of a long-term loan arrangernent on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require 4 payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a financial asset. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee with
corresponding increase in investment in subsidiary. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as
per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that bas been extinguished or transferred to another party and the considerstion paid, including any non-cash assets

o iransferred-orliabilities assumed; is recognised-in'profitor foss as othergains/losses- When-anexisting financial Hability is replaced by arother from the

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the derecognition of the oziginal liability and the recognition of a néw liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as other gains/losses.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For finaneial assets which are financial assets, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determine changes in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s aperations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains oz losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments .
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 2 eurrently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency

or bankmptey of the Company of the counterparty.

f) Trade receivables
.. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair vatue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment (allowance for expected credit loss),

Current and deferred tax

Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the cusrent penod’s taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes
in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax [osses / unused tax credits.

Current fax

penodlcally evaluates pos1t10ns iaken in tax refums wﬁh respect to situations in which appllcablc tax rcgu]atlon is sub _|ect 10 1nterpretat(on I eslabhshcs'
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax autherities.

The net amount of lax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Effective from April 1, 2019, the Company has adopled the oplion of lower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17% (including surcharge and cess), as per
Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act.

Deferred tax
Deterred tax is provided usirg the liability method on temporary dlfferences between thc tax bases of assets and hablhtles znd the:r ca.rrymg amounts in

~the financial statements at the reporting date.
Deferred tax tiabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(i)  Whenthe deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of gaodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i)  In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing
ol the reversal of the demporary differences can be controlled and it is prohable that the remporary differences will not reverse in the foresccable

future
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset er liability in a transactmn
that is not a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(ii}  In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recogrised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the defierred tax asset 1o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. .

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been emacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the perfod that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if'a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items rccogmsed in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

g) Cashand cash equwalenh

Cash and cash h.at banks ¢

less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and Sub_lﬂ(:t to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of ¢ash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts (including cash credit facilities) as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash managernent Bank overdrafls are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

h) Equity share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incrementat costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

i} Frade and ether payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

i) Provisions and contingent abilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an owtflow of
resources Will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims and
serviee warranties. Provisions are niot recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of simifar obligations, the likelihood that an eutflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations asa whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estirrate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting peried. The discount rate used to determing the present value is the pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

d on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three MONHS OT.........oommmorimsrnann

~money-and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an-interest expense;

These arc reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cuerent best eslimates. Tn respect of losses that are covered by insurance, such
losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portion of the loss is not expected 1o be settled
througlh insurance or other forms of recovery. :

Asset Retirement Obligations (AROQ)

ARQ are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of the lease period o restore the lcased
premises in a condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised
as part of the cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The cstimated future costs of
decommissioning arc reviewed annually and any changes.mn the estimated tuture costs or 1 the discount rate apphcd are dd_] usted [tom (he cost of the

.asset.

Contingent liabilities & Contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obllgauon arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occutrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources wil be required to settle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent asset is not recognized and is disclosed only where an inflow of economic benefits are probable

Cunlingent lubilities recopnised 1n u busingss combigation

A contingent liability recognised in a business combinativn is inilially measured at it Lair value. Subsequently, it is tneasured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amartisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.
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k} Revenue recognition )
Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of variable consideration) allocated to that

perfermance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and

schemes offered by the company as part of the contract, Revenue is recognized when the control is transferred to the customer and when the company
has completed its performance ebligation under the contracts. '

At the inception of the new contractual arrangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement.

The terms of the contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series of services that are substantially the same with the same pattem of

the transfer to the customer.

Revenue is recognized as follows:

(i)  Revenue from services represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.

(i}  For non-contract-based business, revenue represents the value of goods delivered or services performed.

(iii)  For contract-based business, revenue represents the sales value of work earried out for customers during the period. Such revenues are recognized
in the period in which the service is rendered.

(iv) Unbilled revenue (contract asseis) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbiiled revenue is reversed in | the
subsequent period when actual invoice is raised.

{v) Uneamned/deferred revenue (contract liabilities) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yet been performed The same is released
to the statement of profit and foss as and when the services are rendered.

(vi) Revenue from the use of assets such as rent for using property, plant and equipment is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
related leases unless payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors’ expected
inflationary cost increase.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the safe of goods is recognised when the control of goods has heen transferred, being when the producis are delivered to the buyer, the
buytr having the ffl discrotion over the use of the gends and thefe is o unfulfilled ohligation that could affect the huysr's acceptance of the product,
Relivery-neenrs-when-the-products-have-been-shipped-to-the-specifie-locationythe-tisks-of-obsolescence-and-loss-have-been-transferrad-to-the buyerand—

either the buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the aceeptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume zebates. Discounts and rebates are estimated based on accumulated experience. The
Company provide normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its produets sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is
recognised at the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a straight line basis over the extended warranty period in case warranty
is provided to customer for a period beyond one year.

Rendering of services
[n contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change, Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated
revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management.

Multiple-element arrangements
When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on each

element’s fair value.
Revenue recopiition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that (s not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, futurs

performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.

The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamortized costs. [f the unamortized costs
exceed the undiscounted cash fow, 4 loss is recognized.

Interest income

"'For all financial assets measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
caleulating th, ef:ectwe Interest rate, Lhe Lompany esumates tie expected cash ﬂowa by consniermg all the contractual terms ot thc tmanmal msm.lmcnt

in the staternent of pruf it and Ioss

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other incame when the Company’s right tn receive payments is estahlishad, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line hasis over the lease term unless payments are
structured 1o increase in ling with (he expected general inflation tb compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increase and is included in

revenue in the statement of profit or foss due to its operating nature.

I} Employce benefits
The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, nefit plans and
share-based payments. The employee benefiis are recognized in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company.

Short-term obligations
Liabilitics for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and compensated abscnces expected to be settled within twelve months after the end

of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to reporting datc and arc measurcd at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. ‘The liability for compensated absences is reeoguised in the provision for employee
benefits. Afl other short-term employee benefit obtigations are preseated as employee benefits payable under other financial liabilities, current.
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Bonus

The Company recognises a liability and an ¢xpense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences

The employees of the Campany are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-acearnulating in nature. The employees
can carry forward up te a specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at
retirement. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial vatuation (using the projected unit credit method)
based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the uaused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date The
expense on non-accumnulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences oceur. Re-
mgasurements arising out of actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken into the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

In respect of those employees who are entitled to an encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, a provision is crcated to account for the
Hability. ’

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to ocous.

Post-employment obligations R

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

i) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees” state insurance; and
ii)  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity,

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s policy te contribute on a defined contribution basis for eligible employees, to Employees” Provident Fund, Employees’ Pension Scheme
and Timployess” Stafe fusarince Scheute lowands post-employment benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government wuthoriliss, wnd
has no further.obli gaxion.btyoncha.king_its.:conuibution.which--is-cxpcctedirythc-year—in,which-it-pertains.—.'lfhc-.eont:ibutions-arc-a.ccﬁunted—f'nr—-as—deﬁ ned-—

contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or 2 reduction in the future payments is available.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has a defined benefit plan, viz., Gratuity, for all its employees, the liability for which is accrued and provided for as determined by an

independent actuarial valuation. A portion of this liability for gratuity is contributed to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance company.
The iabitity or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plar assets. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the end of each .

year. o

Present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market vields on
government bonds at the end of the reporting periods, that have approximately similzr terms to the refated obligation.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(i)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and [osses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

()  Net inferest expense or income

Past service costs are recogrised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

(i)  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

(it)  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

The net interest is calculated by applying the above mentioned discount sate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is ircluded in the employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts inctuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liahility), are recagnised immediately
in the balance sheel with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent perieds.

Equity settled stock-based compensation

L.mplo I din 1181 of the

employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settied transactions),

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The fair
vatue vl uplions granied under various Emplayee Share aptian plans {s reengnised as an emplnyee benefits expense with & corresponding, increase in
equity (share option outstanding account).

The total expense is recognised over the vesling period, which is the period over which ail of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of sach period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and servige
conditions. Tt recognises the impacl of the revision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment
to equity.
Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that wilk ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair vatue of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that de not ultimately vest hecanse non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards inctude a market or nen-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
safisfied, provided that all other performaiice and/or service sonditions wre suliviied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

{formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, uniess stated atherwise
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 {continued)

Cash settled stock-based compensation

Employees of the Company receive share-based compensation in the form of parent company’s share options. The cost of cash-settled transactions is
measured initially at fair value at the grant date based on a debit note received from the parent company. This fair value is expensed over the period umstil
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability.

mj Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs include interest calculated on the effective interest rate method, other costs incurred in connection with borrewing and exchange
differences arising from foreign cusrency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale (‘qualifying assets"), are added to the cost of thase assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the statement of profit and tess within finance costs in the period in which they are

incurred.

n) Leases

Companry as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset ¢lasses primarily consist of leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles. For any new contracts, the Company assesses whether
a conlract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a contract, or pait of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period in exchange for consideration®. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:
(1) the contract contains an tdentified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identificd at the time the
-asset is made available to the Company

(if) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract

(iii} The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Company assesses whether it has the right to direct “how and for what purpose” the asset is used throughout the period of use.

dAVII FONHTEMETH rtlnl TEr llﬂl’ﬂ'l "l([ ly H“H SESTANTTT l( YL

At lease commencement date, the Company recognlses a right-of-use asset (‘ROU’) and a corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which comprises of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the [ease commencement date

(net of any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the straight line method from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

IndAS116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if
the use of such option is reasonably certain. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circrmstances.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and
nat by the respective lessor. B

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease pzyments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate, Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised,

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for paymenis made and increased for inferest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment
- or modification, or il here are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the fease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

" The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Tnstead of recognising a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

- f nam:mg activities’.

- Short-term leases and leases of fow-value assets:
The company has elected not to recognize ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of
low value assets. ‘The company recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

‘Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operaung leases. Rental

income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant [ease unjess payments are siructured to increase in line

with the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other fncome” in the statement of Profit and Eoss.
“Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the ‘carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the -

lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed. The respective leased

assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company te the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases, Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses if any and adjusted for any re-
measurement of the lease liability.
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o) Tmpairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangibie assets that have an indefinite useful life are rot subject to amertisation and are tested annually for impairmeng, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds ifs recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of dispesal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of fiture cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are targely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units or CGU). Impairment
occuss when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Company's CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the
business combination. Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the
other assets of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill recognized in' the
statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent peried. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment ase reviewed
for possible reversal of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

p} Euarnings per share
Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company (after deducting
preference dividends and atéributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus
issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share splis; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted eamings per shase amounts arc computed by dividing the net profit atiributable to the equity holders of the Company (afier deducling
preference dividends and attributable taxes but afier adjusting the after income tax effect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive
petentiul eyuily shurey) by (he waighted average numbar of equity shates cotsidered for deriving basic earnings per sliare and also e weighled

average-number of-equity-sharas-that-conkd-have-hesn-issuednpon-eonversinn-afall-dilntive-potential-equity-shares- The-diluted-potenttal-equity sharcs
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (ie. the average market value of the outstanding shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each year presented.

q} Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash naure, any

deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash seceipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.4 Other accounting policies

a) Investment properties '
Property that is held for Jong-term rental vields or for eapital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment

property.

Investment properties are measured initiafly at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, ilvestment properties are stated at cost
less accumnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes borrowing costs for long~term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised o the
asset’s canying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure wili flow to the Company and-the cost of
such expenditure can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. When part of an investment
property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of derecognition. .

b) Financial instruments

Derivatives e

Beriva vatn

V are taIy 1ecop cdat Tai OIr the date a de OTITZ EnieTed o 'i""
“end of ‘each reporting peried. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair valug depends upon whicther the derivative is designated as a Hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature nf the jtem haing hedged, and the fype of hedge relatinnshin designated.
Derivatives which ar¢ not designated as hedges are aceaunted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gaing/ losses.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a nen-derivative host contract — with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An emhedded derivative causes some or all of the cash
flows that ntherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commedity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other varigble, provided in the casc of a non-financial variable that the

variable is nol specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not scparatc embedded derivatives.
Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts
are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
coniracts and the hast contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contraet that sighificantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.
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¢) [Inventorics
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cest or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes custom duty, freight and other charges as
applicable. The Company periodically reviews inventories to provide for diminution in the value of, and/or any unserviceable or obsolete, inventories.

Costs incurred in bringing each product te its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Fraded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on first i, first out basis.

d) Non-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations

The Company clessifies non-current assets and disposal groups 2s held for sale/distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale/distribution rather than through continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete the
sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution wili be made or that the decision to sell/distribute will
be withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-~current assels held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less
costs to sel/distribute except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contacts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented

separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-town of the asset (or dispoesal group) to fair value less costs to sell/distribute. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an asset (or a disposal group}, but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale/ distribution of the non-current asset (or disposal

group) is recognised on the date of derecognition.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for safe/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

£ ) H-A PN

—A-dispesal-group-gualifies-as-discontinued-operation-f-itis-a-compenent-ofamentity-thateither-has-been-disposed-ofe fiet

(i)  Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
{t)  Is part of 2 single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or
(iii) Ts a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the resuits of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainfy include amounts for continning operations, unless otherwise mentioned. -

e} Government grants
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasdnable assurance that the grant will be recetved, and the Company will

comply with all attached conditions.

Govemnment grants relating to income or expenditure /expenses are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the expected fives of related assets and presented within other income.

f) Forecign currency {ransaction and balances
The financial statements of the Cumpany are presented in Indian Rupees (TNR) which is alsa the Company’s functional currency,ie, the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recarded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates prevailing at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary agsets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the fnctional currency spot rates prevailing as at the reporting date.
Subscqucntly, differences a.rising on restatement or settlement of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, Non-monctaly items that are measured
in fesms of historical cogt in 2 forcu;u curr-:ncy e tla.nslatcd uﬁmg %hr: cu.imngc ke 1|||= lluit:h ul' Lllt: nnlml lnnsm __um. Al (Hnsiidion |||l‘ﬁ,rL.muv

—foreign ctrrency are translated using the cxchangc Tates a,t the date when thc falr value is dctcrmmt:d, The galn ar loss arls:ng on translatmn m" non-
mongtary items meagured at fair value is treated in Line with the recognition of the gain or loas on the change in fair value of the item (i.c., transiation
diffistsnces ur items whuoge L vielue gun or lows 18 recogmsed i OCL or profit or loss arc also reeognised in OCT or proflt ur loss, respectively).

The equity items denominaled in loreign currencies are transiated at historical cost.

“'g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribntion to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a hiability to make cash or non-cash cistributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the

distribution is no longer at the diseretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

~Non-cash distributions are measured at the carrying value of the assets to be distributed in case of distributions in which all owners of the same class of -
equity instruments are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the distribution,
and at fair value of the assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group of individuals shall
be regarded as controlling an entity when, as a resuit of contractual arrangements, they collectively have the power to govern its financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets disttibuted is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

h) Exceptional items
Exceptionat items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of

such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.
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2.5 Recent Indian Acconnting Standards (Ind AS)
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31,2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing

standards applicable to the Company.

3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, fiabilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that
are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes. .

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recoghised in the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materiaily
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these éstimates
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each atfected line itent in the financial siatements,

Critical cstimates and jundgemcnts

The areas involving critical estimates o judgemenls are.

(i)  Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Mote 8
(u) Estimated useful lite o intangible assels — Nole 2.3.¢

s ation-ofdefmed-benefitobligation
(lv) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward of tax losses — Note 8

(v)  Impairment of trade receivables — Note 36 .

{vi} Whether assets held for distribution to owners meet the definition of discontinued operations — Note 2.4.d

Impairment '

The Company assesses impainment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impairment of assets. Where
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates. There are no reasonable foreseeable changes in these key estimates which would have caused an impairment of

these assets.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share based payment transactions are disclosed in notes to the financial statement.

Taxes
Deferred tax assets ate recognised for unused tax fosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can

be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning stratepies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratutty plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
‘actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves makmg various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rafe, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is hased an publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change oniy at interval in response to demngraphic
changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

~“Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financtal liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot he measured hased on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possihle, but where this is nat frasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values, Judgements inciude considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported tair value of financial

instruments.

Leases
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable peried of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease,

if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by

“assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to exténd or terminate the ¢ontract will be exercised. In'eévaluating the Iease i€rm, the Compaiy

considers luclors yuch ug any significant leaschold improvements undertaken over the fease term, costs relating o (e enuivalivn of (e Tease amd the
importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset the availability of suitable alternatives.

The lease term in fiture periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Provisions
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgement, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against
the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.
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Contingencies
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal, contractual and other claims.

By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or mare uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and
potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future

events.

Useful lives of taugibie/intangible assets
The Group reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tangiblefintangible assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utlity of the assets.
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SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

{formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

6. Investments

Particelars

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

Non-current investments

Investments in equity instruments

Investment in associates (at cost unless stated otherwise)

Unguoted equity shares (fully paid)

1,919,804 (March 31, 2024: 1,919,804 ) equity shares in SIS Cash Services Private Limited of INR 10/- each fully
paid up

492.66

492.66

11,000,000 (March 31, 2624: 11,000,000) equity shares in SIS Alarm Monitoring and Response Services Private
Limited of INR 10/- each fully paid up*

110.00

110.00

602.66

602.66

Other equity invesimenis

Investment ir fellow subsidiaries (at cost unless stated otherwise)

[nvestment in equity component of optionaily convertible debentures in Terminix SIS India Pvt. Lid
500,000 (March 31, 2024: 500,000) Optionally convertible debentures in Terminix SIS India Private Limited of INR
100/- each fully paid up

17.63

Total investment in equity instruments

620.29

605.25

Investments in debentures or bonds

Investmentin fellowsubsidiacies{atcostunlessstated otherwise)

500,060 (March 31, 2024: 500,000} Optionally convertible debentures in Terminix SIS India Private Limited of INR
160/- each fully paid up**

3843

Total invesment in debentures or bonds

38.43

Total non-current inves tments

" 658.72

60525

Current investiments

Investmetts in debentares or bonds

Investment in fellow subsidiaries ( at cost unless stated otherwise)

5,00,000 Optionally convertible debentures in Terminix SIS India Private Limited of INR 100/~ each fully paicd
up**

5300

Total investment in fellow subsidiaries

50.00

Total current investments

50.00

Total investments

658.72

655,25

Aggregate book value of quoted investments and market value thereof

Aggregate book value of unguoted investments

658.72

63525

Apgregate amount of impaiment in value of investments

* The Parent, SIS Limited lolds 72.50% on SIS Alarm Monitoring ard Response Services Private Limited.

**I'he Company has subscribed to 5,00,000 eptionally convertible debentures {OCDs} of INR 100 each on May 31, 2017 for a term of 5 years. The OCDs shall

have-a-maturity-of 5-years; followed by-an-extension of 5-years-as-per the-amendment agreement-in the year -ended-March 31,2025, frony the-date of issuance; =

Accordingly, Same has been regrouped and disclosed under non-current investments during the vear ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: classified under .

current investments based on their maturity).

# During the year ended March 31, 2024, 50 (March 31, 2023: 147) Non-convertible debentures of Rs. INR 50.00 million (March 31, 2023: 147 milkion) has been

redeemed.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)
All amounts in INR milfien, unless stated otherwise

7, _Other linancial assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other nor-current financial assets

Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 3014 3299
Margin money in the form of fixed deposits * 4718 61.84
Fixed deposit maturing after 12 months 9,99 79.55
Tatal Other non-current financial assets 87.31 174.38
Other corrent financial assets

Unbilled revenne ** 634.73 651.75
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 36.26 24.38
Interest accrued on deposits / investments/ioan 2220 23.23
Other receivables 26.92 25.70
Total other current financial assets 720.11 715.06
Total financial assets 807.42 399.44

* Fixed deposits have been pledged as margin money against bank guarantees.

** All unbilled dues are undésputed and falling under the ageing of less than six months from the date of completion of delivery of goods/services. Further,
unbitled revenues are classified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

No other advances are due from directars or ather officers of the Company either severally nr jointly wuth any other person and from (irms or private

companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in Note 35.

Refor Note 36 for the Compamy's policy regarding impairment all owance on trade receivables.and Company. s credit risk- management pocesses

7A. Loans
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total non-current loans - -
Current loans
Loans to related parties* B 17.00
Other loans - -
Tatal current loans - i7.00
Total Loans - 17.00
Break-up of security details:
Particulars ’ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Loan Receivables considered good - Secured

Lean Receivables considered good » Unsecured

F7.00

Tatal

17.00

*Refer note 35 for terms.

8. Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section:

| Particulapg

Maiehi 3120z e ———

“|Ctirrent income tax:

- MEFER 312025 |

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect nf cirent incame: tay ewpense / (reversal) of previous years

Deferred tax;

Decrease / (increase} in deferred tax assets {net)

(9.12)

96.93

Income tax expensc / (eredit) reported in the statementt of profit and loas

{9.12)

96.93

- (CI section: : o
Tax related to items recognised in OCI durmg the year:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2624

"Tax expense / (credit) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans

0.33

1.10

Income tax charged to OCI

0.33

116




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the tax raie for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Accounting profit before tax from cantinuing operations 202.69 152.33
Accounting profit before income tax 202.69 152.33
Statutory income tax rate 2517% 25.17%)
Income taxexpense at statutory rate 51.01 3834
Additional temporary taxdeductible in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (67.67) 5828
Non-dednetible expenses for tax purposes

Corporate social res pons ibility expenditure 071 0.31
Other nor-deductible expenses / (income) 6.83 -
Tax expense reported in the s tatement of profit and foss (2.12) 96.93

The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the tinancial year 2024-25 would be 25.17% {including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it

exists on the date of these financial statements.

The batance in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets 5.99 7.72
Defined benefit obligations 4975 37.99
Deductions in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 B7.87 77.39
Acerunls and others 13.68 5.0
tiowanceforespectedtredirioss—tratleTeceivabio 3 IRt
Total deferved tax assets / (liabilities) 180.71 171.92
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (liabilities), net:
Property, Defined Deductions in]  Accruals Allowance Total
plant and benefit vespect of | and others | for expected
. equipment/ | obligations certain credit loss —
Particulars Intangible benefits under trade
assets the Income receivables
Tax Aet, 1961 )
As at April 1,2023 4,28 2273 199.39 8.70 34.93 269,95
Tax income / (expense) during the period recogaised in profit or loss 3.52 16.36 {122.00) (3.50) 8.69 (96.93)
Tax income / {expense) during the period recognised in OCI D {1.10) - - - (L.10)
As at March 31, 2024 7.72 37.99 77.39 5.20 43.62 171.92
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss (1.73) 12.09 (0.72) 8.48 - 212
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in OCI : - (0.33) - - - (0.33)
As at March 31, 2025 599 49.75 67.67 13.68 43.62 180,71
Income tax assets:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2624
Opening balance 141.82 244,02
Taxes paid 100.67 114.65
T T - @193;1 O
income cax aysers 137.99 141.82

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabifities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. .




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

0.  Other assets

Particulars ! March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Other non-current assets
Other advances - -
Total other non-current assets - -
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 23.54 2048
Other advances 1548 44.31
|Other current assets 2733 2036
Total other current assets 66.35 85.15
Total other asseis 66.35 85.15
10. Inventories
Particulars March 31, 2025 "March 31, 2024
Uniforms 2.25 3.70
Tatal inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 2.25 3.70
Tl. Trade receivables
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Trade reecivables 141280 LAss.ul
TessAllowmeefor expectederedit Toss TH30 T30
Total trade receivables 1,239,50 1,081.71
Break-up of security details:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured, considered goad - -
Unsecured, considered good 1,239.50 1,081.71
Total 1,239.50 1,081.71

The movement in allowances for expected credit loss is as follows:

ely.

The amount of loss allowance ("lifetime” expected credit loss) hag been recognised under the simplified approach for trade receivable and hence break-up
of trade receivable into 'significant increase in credit risk' and 'credit impaired’ has not been disclosed separat

Closing balance

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2824
Opening halance 173.30 138.80
Additions - 34.50
‘Write off (net of recovery) - -
173.30 173.30




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amaounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

The ageing schedule for outstanding trade receivables from the due date is given below:
Year ended March 31, 2025

Particnlars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due Less than 6 | 6 months-1 | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3
meonths year years
(i Undisputed trade receivables 51.55 954.55 8495 37139 2533 116.55 1,270.32
({i) Disputed trade receivables - 1.49 75.54 2707 279 35.59 142.48
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Ouistanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due Less than 6 | 6 months- 1 | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than3
months year years
_{(i) Undisputed trade receivables 591.44 409.94 50175 36.60 20.40 101.02 1,211,158
(i) Disputed trade receivables - - - 240 231 39.15 43.86

No trade receivables are due from directors ar other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 35.

Refer Note 36 for the Company’s policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Company’s credit risk management processes.

For outstanding balances, terrns and conditions relating to related patty receivables, refer Nota 35.

12. Cash and bank balunccs
Cash and cash eqnivalents

Dividends

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
— In current and other accounts 4.21 2.08
— Bank deposits with original matusity of three months or less 113.50 20.08
Tatal . 11771 22,16
Bank balances lying in various current accounts bear no interest.
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and prior periods.
Other bank balances
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Deposits with origi‘nal maturity of more than three months and having remaining maturity of Jess than twelve 17490 1859
months from reporting date ,
Margin money * - 3.56
Total 374.90 132.15
*Pledged as Security/Margin Money against guaraniees issued by banks on behalf of the Company
13. Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
Particulars {Nos. in million}) {INR million)
As at Aprit 1, 2023 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 2000 260.00
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 2000 200.00
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
--| As-at-March 31,2025 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) - e 2000 - 20000
Tssuetd, subscribed and paid up equity capital
Particulars {Nos. in million) (INR million)
As at April 1,2023 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 1951 195.13
Increasc / (decrease) during the year .. . - -
As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 19.51 195.13
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
| As at Mareh 31, 2025 (Equity shares of lNR-lB.each) 19.51 195.13

The Company declares and pays dividends in [ndian rupees. According to the Companies Act, 2013 any dividend shoutd be declared out of accumulated
distributable profits. A Company may, before the declaration of any dividend, transfer 2 percentage of its profits for that financial year as it may consider

appropriate to the reserves.

No dividend has been declared for the year ended March 31,2025 (March 31, 2024: INR 8.70 per share aggregating to TINR 169.76 million)




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

Al amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Terms/vights attacked to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 0 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vete per share and
ta participate in dividends in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remairing assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares held by holding / ultimate holding Company / and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiarles/associates are as

below:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particolars
) {Nos. in miliion) {Nos. in million)
518 Limited {formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited?)* 11.51 f1.51
8.00 8.00

SIS Group Intemational Holdings Pty Limited

* Includes 6 nominee shares each held by Ravindra Kishore Sinha, Rituraj Kishore Sinha, Viray Kumar Srivastava, Chandra Bhushan Prasad, Uday Singh

and Avvind Kwmar Prasad,
Details of shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the sharehoider ) e § o it
Nos. in million % halding in the Nos. in million % halding in the
clasy clasy
SFS .Lmluled (formerly known as Sectfmy and Intelligence Serviees (India) (LSt 59.00% 1151 59,00%
Limited")
518 Group International Tloldings Pty Limited 8.00 41.00% 8.00 41.00%
Details of promoter shareholding in the Company
Year ended March 31, 2025 .
S. No. Name of the Promoter/Promater Group Exuity shares as Exquity shares as %
on March 31,| % holding in on March 31,| % kolding in Change
2025|  the class 2024 the class during the
(in Nos.) (in Nos.) year
1 SIS Limted (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence 11,512,800, 59.00% 11,512,800, 59.00%, 0.00%
Services (India) Limited")
2 [SIS Group Intemational Holdirgs Pty Limited 8,000,000 41.00% 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.00%
Total 19,512,800 19,512,800
Year ended March 31, 2024
S. No. Name of the Promoter/Promoter Group Equity shares as : Equity shares as Ya
on March 31,| % holding in on March 31,] % holding in Change
2024|  the class 2023] theclass during the
(in Nos.} (in Nos.) year
1 SIS Limited (formerly known as 'Security and Intefligence 11,512,800 59.00% 11,312,300 59.00% 0.00%
Services (India) Limited")
2 SIS Group Intemational Holdings Pty Limited 8,000,000 41% 8,000,000 8000000 {.00%
Total 19,512,300 19,512,800
14. Other equity
Particulars March 31, 2625 March 31,2024
.| Reserves and surplus o ]
Securities premium 937,50 937,50
Retained camings 716.04 303.27
"T'otal reserves and surplus (A) 1,653.54 1,440.77
Other reserves
Equity component of compound financial instraments 30.11 30.1¢
Equity contribution by parent 19.67 19.67
.| Total other reserves (B) "49.78 | . .49.78
Tatal ather equity (A+B) 1,703.32 1,490.55




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

{formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)
All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

Securities premium

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance at the beginning of year 937.50 937.50
Receipt on issue of equity shares - -
Balance at the end of year 937.50 937.50
Retained earnings
Particuiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 503.27 614.36
Net Profit / (loss) for the year 21181 55.40
Tiems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurcments of post-employment benefit plans directly in retained earnings (net of taxes) 0.96 3.27
Appropriations-
- Final / interim dividend - (169.76)
Balance at the end of year 716,04 503.27
Equity component of compounded financial instruments
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 30.11 30.11
Buarenna / (dlevrensy) during the year " "
anceat o I IOTT

Refer note 13 (e)

Equity contribution by parent

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of year 19.67 16.84

Fair value adjustment of corporate guarantee provided by parent - 283
19.67 19.67

Balance at the end of year

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium
Security preminm is used 10 record the premium on issue of shares or other securities such as debentures or bonds. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the Companies Act, 2013

Retained earnings .
Retained eamnings represent the amount of accumulated eamnings of the Company and re-rmeasurement differences on defined benefit plans.

Equity components of compound finaneial instruments

Compound financial instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of coriract. On the issuance of compound financiai
instruments, the fair value of liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a financiat
liability measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs) untif it is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The equity component is classified under

ather equity.

Equity contribution by parent
Equity contribution by parent represents guarantee given by parent as a guarantor on behalf of the Company.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerty known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amaunts in INR mitlion, unless stated atherwise

i5. Borrowings

Particulars Note March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Now-current Borrowings
Secured
Term Loans
From Banks
- HDFC Bank Limited a - 4,88
- Yes Bank Limited b 46.66 7748
- Axis Bank Limited c 201.84 127.06
Vehicle loan
~ Vehicle loan from: HDFC Bank d 1.64 -
~ Vehick: loan from others d 2.55 4.29
Total secured burrowings 252,69 213.71
Unsecured
Bonds/ Debentures
Liability component of compound financial instrument e 32.15 29.23
Term loans
- From related panies t - 9590
Total ungcenred bors 1215 E21.03
HaI TN e harraw Lsﬁ J.ﬁ,ﬂ‘l
Current maturity oflong term debt (refer below) (3.64) (162.19)
Not-current borrowings (as per halance sheet) 281.20 232.65
Current borrowings
Secured
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks
- HDFC Bank Limited I3 278.8t 296.10
- Yes Bank Limited h 546.06 395.27
Total secured borrowings 824.87 69137
Add: Curent Maturities of long term debt (refer below) 3.64 102.19
Current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 328.51 79356
Aggregate seenred bormowings 1,077.56 905.08
Agpregate unsecured barrowings 3215 121.13
Current maturities of long-term borrowings:
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current maturities of long term debt ;
Secured
.fTermloans e
. FiomBanks 364 10.29.
Ferm loans
Fromrelated parties - 91,90
| Total current maturities of ]oﬁg term barrowings 3.64 102.19

Notes:
Term loans:

a)  The Term loans are secursd nguinkl un exelugive charge over the fixed naseta and eurrent assets of the Company. The torm loans ave repayalile i 54
... equal monthly instalments from the date of respective draw down, totaling Rs.1.70 million per month with repayment commeneing from January
2020 and has been repaid during FY 2024-25.

[}
b)  The Term loan are secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the entire movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company. The term
loans are repayable in 54 equal mouthly instalments after a moratorium period of 6 months from the date of first disbursement, totaling Rs.2.59
miflion per month with repayment commeneing from April 2022 and is schedule to be repaid by FY 2026-27.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)
All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

¢)  The Term loan ase secured by way of first pari-passu charge over the entire movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company. The term
loans are repayable in [8 equal quarterly instalments after a moratorium period of 6 months from the date of first disbursement, totaling Rs.15.5
million per quarter with repayment commencing from June 2024 and is schedule o be repaid by FY 2027-28.

Other loans and advances: 3
d)  Vehicle Loan from Others are secured by hypothecation of the respective vehicle(s) purchased againsi the loan taken, The loans have various

repayment schedules and are scheduled to be repaid by FY 2028-29.

e) SIS Limited (SIS} have subscribed to 49 optionally convertible debentures (OCDs) of Rs, 1,000,000/~ each during financial year 2019-20. The OCDs
are for a term of 10 years bearing an interest rate of 0.001%. The Company has the right to redeem at any time until the maturity of the QCD. SIS
has right to convent at any time upto redemption, into fully paid-up equity shares of the Company based on the fair value of the equity shares of the

Company at the time of maturity/conversion.
The nurber of equity shares to be issued at maturity / an conversion wilt be derived based on the fair value of the equity shares of the Company at
the time of maturity / conversion. Since the OCD’s contain a conversion option, these are treated as compound financial instruments and accordingly

have been split into equity component and liability componeat at the time of issue of such OCD’s.

) The term loans mentioned above cxcept vehicle loans carry interest at quarterly/yearly MCLR plus spread margin ranging of 105 bps to 235 bps. The
vehicle loans earry interest @ 8.90% per annum. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to note 35.

Short Term Borrowings - Secured Loans repayable on demand:

g) Cash Credit from HDFC Bank is secured by first charge over all current assets and fixed assets of the Company.
h)  Cash Credit from YES Bank is secured by first charge over all current assets and fixed assets of the Company.

The loan repayable on demand mentioned above carry interest rate ranging from 8.40% 1o 10.50% per annum,

The quarterly/monthly retums or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

16. Lease liabilities

e COTOMIEMENTS,

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current lease liabilities 11.73 2.87
Current lease liabilities 438 0.03
Toial Lease liabilities 16,11 .90

Other disclosure related to Lease

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening balance 2.90 1.54
Additions 17.34 299
Finance cost acerued during the year 130 0.4
Payment of' Lease liability (4.05} (4.22)
Others (1.38_) 1.85
Closing balance 16.11 290
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Other disclosure related to lease

Rent expenses related to short-tenn leases and low value assets ’ 34.21 24.74

Refer note 4(i) for disclosure of refated Right of Use Assets.

The Company does not expect potential expesure to variable lease payaments, extension/termination options, puaranieed residual value and lease




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR milfion, unless stated otherwise

17, Trade payables

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current - -
Current

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf enterprises (MSME) 2296 18.73
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 73.26 70.00
Total current trade payables 96.22 88.73
TFaotal 96,22 88.73

The terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:

a.  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are nermally settled on credit terms ranging from 30- -60 days which vary by vendor and type of service.

“b. For outstanding balancés, terms and conditiohs with félated parties, refer to note 35.

Based en the information available with the Company, the amount payable to creditors who have been identified as “suppliers” within the meaning of

*Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Principal amount and the interest [INR Nil (March 31, 2024 —Nil)] due therecn 2296 1873
Amount ofinterest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, alang w1th the amounts } .
ofthe payment made ta the supplier beyond the appointed day durirg each accounting year
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which hrave been paid but
beyend the appointed day during the year) but witheut adding tha intereat fpecified nnder MSMFET Act, 2006 -
TNOUIT 01 DTETE - -
Ameunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible - -
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables where due date of payment is given below:
Year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
YEATS
((MSME 20.08 238 - - - 22.96
(i{)Others 19.31 51.62 233 - - 73.26
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Mot doe <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
()MSME 12.67 6.06 - - - 18.73
(iiYOthers - 10.94 . 53.26 227 0.59 294 70.00
There are no disputed dues during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
18, Other financial liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current - -
Current
Capital creditors 12.57 946
Employee benefits payable 375.22 373.27
Other payables and accruals * 154.25 106.25
Total other current financial liabilities 542.04 458.98
Total other financial liabilities 542.04 488.98

*Includes unbilled dues having ageing of less than one year.
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19. Financial instruments by category

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Particulars
FVTPL FVTOCT Amortisedcost | FYTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets:
Investments
-Bonds and debentures - 3843 - - 50,00
Trade receivables - 1,239.50 - - 1,081.71
Cash and cash equivalents - 17.71 - - 22.16
Other bank balances - 374.90 - - 132.15
Leans . - - - 17.00
Other financial assets - 80742 - - 899.44
Total finanvial usyets - 2,577.96 - - 2,202.46
Financial liahilities:
Trade payables - 96.22 - - 8873
Borrowings - 1,109.71 - - 1,026.2t
Lease lizbilities - 16.11 - - 2.90
Citier finan céal Habilltes - 54284 - - 488.98
Total financial liglilities - 1,764.08. - - E,606.82.
Fair value of assets and labilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:
. March 31, 2625 March 31,2024
Particnlars Falir Value
hierarchy Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
{financial assets:
Investments Level 2 inputs 56.06 3951 52.59 50.55
Trade receivables 1,235.50 1,239.50 1,081.71 1LOBL.71
Cash and cash equivalents 1771 11771 .16 2216
Other back balances 37490 374.90 13215 132.15
Loats - - 1700 17.00
Other financial assets 80742 807.42 899,44 899.44
Total financial assets 2,595.59 2,579.04 2,205.05 2,203.01
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 96.22 9622 8873 287
Bomowings - floating rate 1,073.37 1,073.37 500,79 900.79
Borowings - fixed rate . Level 2inputs 3634 34.36 12542 125.61
Lease liabilities - 1611 16.11 250 290
Other financia? Habilities 542.04 542.04 488,98 488,98
Total financial liabilities 1,764.03 1,762.10 1,606.82 1,607.01

The Company has assessed that the fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, capital ereditors, trade payables, bank overdrafts and

other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair vaie of investrrem e fixed T WTmwings are caloulare hased o eree eash (1orws disnmm e TISimg Wevghted NVernge cost of debt s of
balance sheet date and accordingly classified inder level 2 fair valies in the fair valug hierarchy due to the use af significant ohsérvable inpats.

Valuatinn processes

The finance department ol Parent icludes (ie tewn tied per Ryrm (e valuativns of Ananeis] assels and ligbilities required for Gnancial reporting purposes, -
including level 3 fair values, The team reports directly to the chief financial officer of Parent (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and the valuation team at least once every 3 months, in line with the Company’s quarterly reporting period. External valuer's
assistaznce is also taken for valuation purposes where required.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated as follows:
» Discounts rate are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate 2 pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
" of money and the risk Specifi¢tothe asset. 7 o o ) o ' '

»  Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumptions about credit default rates) are derived from credit risk grading determined by
the Company’s internal credit management group.

+  Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility of comparable companies.

s Contingent consideration — estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entities, knowledge of the business
and how the cumrent economic environment és likely to impact it.
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20. Provisions

Pariiculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 26) Non-current| Current Non-current Current
Gratuity 60.14 31.48 48,19 2733
Leave liabilities - 34.67 - 26,03
Total 60.14 66.15 48.19 53.36
21. Other liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other non-current liahilities - -
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 171.36 113.26
Others 16.76 16.76
Total ather current liahilities 188.12 130.02
Total other Habilities 188.12 130.02
22. Revenue from operations
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Rendering of services ) .
Fram honsekeeping, cleaniag, facility operation & management services 6,973,589 6,620,83
Revenue-franraperat TLEWLE AR

The Company s revenue is from rendering of services towards facility management and has been recognized over the period of time from the contracts

with customers, located in Indian geography.

Contract balances:
The following table provides information about unbilled revenue from contract with customezs:

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Opening halance 651.75 623.99
Transfers fromunbilled revenue recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables (651.75) (623.99)
[ncrease due to revenue'recogniscd during the year, excluding amounts billed during the year 634:73 651.75
Closing balance 634.73 651.75
23. Other income
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income * 44.21 33.57
Total 44.21 33,57
* Includes interest income on income tax refund
24. Other gain/loss)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Net gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment 1.44 {1151
Fareign exchange gain/(loss) - (0.08)
Total 1.44 (11.59)
25, Cost of materials consumed
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases of chiemicals, consumables, and others 16348 17817
Uniforms and related inventories 45.80 37.52
| Total 200,28 216.69
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25A. Changes in inventory of steck-in-trade

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Inventory at the beginning of'the year 370 0.53
Inventory at the end of the year 2325 3706
Changes in imentory of stock-in-trade - (increase)/decrease 145 (3.17)

26. Employee benefits expense
(a) Employee costs inclade:

Particulars : March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 5,204.3% 492439
Contribution to provident and ather funds 62047 600.40
Employee share-based payment expense * 0.74 217
Caluily expense 21.50 19.61
Leave expenses 3146 20.25
Staff welfare expenses i 1L.71 0.15
Total 5,890.27 5,566.97

* Centain employees of the Company have been granted shase options issued by the Parent, viz., SIS Limited. The cost of such share options is charged to
the Company by the parent and is reimbursed by the Company,

abligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave within the next 12
months. The following amount reflects leave that is not expected to be taken within the next 12 months:

Unfunded Schemes:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Present value of unfunded abligations 34.67 26.03

Expenses to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss 3146 20.25

Discount rate (per annum) 6.55% 7.15%
Indian Assured Lives | Indian Assured Lives

Mortality Mortality (2012-14)  {Mortality (2012-14)
Ul Lilt.

Salary escalation rate (per annam) 8.00% 8.00%)

The liability for earned and sick leave is recognised and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all
employees at the reporting date. Tn determining the present vatue of the liability, attrition rates and pay increases through promotion ang inflation have
been taken into account.

(c) Defined contribution plans

The Cempany has certain defined contribution plans.

Contributions ate made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of the salary (subject to a limit of INR 15,000 salary per month) as per
regulations. The contributions are made to a statutory provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the
amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligations in this regard.

Further, contributions are made in respect of Employees” State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as per
regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Government to the employees. The cantributions are made to empioyees’ state
nsyrance authoritics administered by the Govemment. The ohiigation of the Company is limited to the amnunt contribited and it has an further consractal

DT CONRIEHvE ah i EATfong in tins Tersrd,

Contributions to provident fund and employees’ statc insurance scheme are recognized as an expense 45 Lhey become payable which coincides with the
perind daring which relevant employee services are received. Prepsid contributions are recognized as an assel 1o (he exlent that 4 cagh refund or u reductinn
in the future payments is available.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expense recognised during the period towards defined contribntion plans 62047 | 600.40

(d) Detined benefits plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination
" of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company subject to compietion of five years of service and other
conditions. The gratuity plan is a partly furded plan and the Company makes contributions to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance
company. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations
of expected gratuity payments.

The Company has invested the plan assets in the insurer managed funds.
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The following tabtes summarises the companents af net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Expenditure to be recognized during the vear:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Current service cost 17.08 15.69
Interest cost 442 392
Total amount recegnised in profit or loss 21.50 19.61
Remeasurements
Reture on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income (0.06) 074
Loss / (gain) fiom changes in financial assumprions 1.53 0.11
Loss / (gain) from changes in demographic ass umptions (0.49) -
Expenence loss / (gain) (2.27) (5.22)
N Tatal doss / (guin) recognis cd in other comprehensive income {1.29} 4.37)
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation is summarized below:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defired Benefit Obligation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 75.61 65,44
Current service cost 17.08 15.69
Interest cost 443 392
Renwasurgnmwuly (1.33) (510
4.03) @31y
Liabilities assumed/ {settied)} 0.17 (0.02)
Defined benefit ohligation at the end of year 22.01 75.61
Reconciliation of fair value of Plan Assets:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 0.09 3.51
Remeasurements 0,06 0.74)
Contribution by employer ' 429 1.63
Benefits paid (4.05) 431
‘[ Pair value of plan assets at the closing of the year 0.39 0.09
Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and Obligations:
Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and Obligations March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Fair value of plan assets 0.39 0.09
Present valug of obligation (92.01) (75.61)
Asset / (liability) recognized in balance Sheet (91.62) (75.52)

The present value of defined benefit obligation relates to active employees only.

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional ene-off contributions, The
Company intends to continue to contribute to the defined benefit plans to achieve a target fevel of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on

estimations of expected gratuity payments.
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The principal assumptéions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Principal Assumptions:

Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.55% 7.15%
Indian Assured Lives |Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality (2012-14) {Mortality (2012-14)
Ult. Ult.

Future salary increase

- Non-billing / indirect emplayees ‘ £.00% 8.00%,
- Billing /direct employees 5.00% 3.00%
Altrition rate

Billing employees

- Age from 21-30 years 56.00% 52.00%

|- 31-40years . . . . 44.00% <. 42.00%)

- 41-50 38.00% 40.00%)
- 5 and above 35.00% 43.00%
Non billing employees

- Age from 21-30 years 27.00% 24.00%
- 3140 ) 25.00% 21.00%
- 41-50 21.00% 24.00%
= 51 & above : 23.00% 11 nMe4

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Discount rate
0.5% increase ' (1.399%) (1.41%)
0.5% decrease 1.43% 1.46%)
Future salary increases
0.5% increase : ' 1.42% 1.43%)
0.5% decrease {1.40%) (1.41%)

The above sensitivity anafysis are based on a change in assumption while holding afl other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuariaf
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calcufated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit Hability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methads and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing ecoromic environment and regulatory changes.

The Company has selected a suitable insurer to manage the funds in such a maaner as to ensure that the investment positions are managed with an asset-
liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans.
Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the obligations by investing in securities to match the benefit payments
as they fall due.

e ek Lol
at B il L=y \,Al)l-.l-/u-\& aoll

--outflows arising- from" employee benefit obligations. The Company-has nat-changed the processes used to manage its risks from' previous periods.
Investments aro well diversificd, such that failure of any singfe investment should not have & meterial impaet on the overall level of asscts,

Defined beuelit liability and e ployer contribulivus
The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations and expected maturity analysis of undiscounigy gratuity benelits 15 as
follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The weighted average duration of the pest-employment benefit plan obligations (in ycars) : 282 2.87

Fxpected contribution 1 the find during the next year 3192 27.44
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Maturity profile: March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Less than a year 31.92 2744
Between 1-2 years 23.59 18.38
Between 2-5 years 37.54 3091
Over 5 Years 19.97 18.43
Total 113,02 95.66

{e) The Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been notified through Gazette of India after assent of Hon’ble President of India
which govern, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the Company towards certain employee’s benefits. Notification of rules of these codes are
pending. The effective date of implementation of these Codes has not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact of these codes as and when
they comg into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becbmes effective.

27. Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
. Interest expense 109.92 119.26
Interest on [ease liability 1.30 0.44
Other finance costs * - 7.43
Total 111,22 127.15

borrowing ether thun finunce costs (hat do not meet (ke definition of transaction costs,

28, Depreciatior and amertization expenses

*Includes commitment charges, loan processing charges, guarantee charges, loan facilitation charges, other ancillary costs incurred in connection with

March.31,.2025 Marsh.l,.2024

Drepreciation on property, plant and equipment including ROU (Note 4) 77.62 62.73

Amartization of intangible assets (Note 5} 047 0.53

Total 78.09 63.26
29, Other expenses
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Training expenses 7.07 277
Fuel and lubricants 3747 26.51
Other direct operating cost 162.32 I81.66
Selling expenses 933 14.69
Administrative expenses:
-Ttavelling and conveyance 3126 2679
~Posiage and telephone 435 4.49
-Stationary and printing 524 5.53
-Rent * 34.21 24.74
-Rates & taxes 3.51 518
-Insurance 16.71 1178
-Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 0.08 0.28
..w.Machinery, . . L3709 3193).
= Others .. 375 3931
-Vehicle Bite cliarges 12.06 12.79
-Payments to auditors {(Refer details below) 243 0.33
-Legal and professional fees 22,97 23.93
- |-Allowance for expected credit loss - 3450

~Expcnsc towards corporate social responsibility (Refer details below) 277 1.24
-Other administration and general expenses 1339 106.58
ot - - — “mrest 05

* Refer note 16.
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Payment to Auditors

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
LAy auditor:
Statutory audit fees 221 0.29
In other capacity:
Others . 0.23 0.04
Total payment to anditors 2.44 0.33
Details of CSR experiditure
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a} Gross amount required ta be s pent by the Company during the year 2 1.24
() Amount spent during the year:
(1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 2.77 1.24
(c) The excess/(shortfall} ampunt at the end of the year over and above the smount required to be spent by the _ .
comnpany during the year
(d) Total previous years excess/(shortfafl) adjus ted during the year - -
{¢) The excess/(shortfall) amount at the end of the year (including excess/(shortfall) of previous years) - -
(f) The natore of CSR activities undertaken by the company
(i) promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially 27 124
among children, women, clderly, and the differently. abled. and livelihood.anlancement projects
(i) Setting.n Lagshnmes..daye el ch.of ilitfesforseniorcitizens.and.measues.fx = =
reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.
- 124

(g) Contribution to related parites in relation to CSR activities

(e) Where a provision is made in accordance with respect to above, the same shouid be presented as per the

requirements of Schedule IH of the act

Further, movement in the provision during the year should be shown separately.

(¢) The amount of shortfall at the end of the yeur out of the amonnt required to be spent by the company
during the year

{f) The total of previous years' shortfall amounts

30. Earnings per share (EPS)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted eamings per equity share is set out helow:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings 2i{1.81 55.40
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjusted for the effect of dilution 211.81 55.40
‘Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 19,512 R00 19,512,800
Effect of dilution:
Conversion of OCD (Numbers) 4,900,000 4,900,000
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 24,412,800 24,412,300
‘Nominal value of eguity shares (INR) 10 10
Eamings per share
- Basic(INR) 10.85 2.84
- Dilwed(INR) 868\ oo R2T
31, Commitments and contingencies
(a) Capital commitment
The estimated amount of contracts remaining w be exeeuted on capital account (net of capital advances) and not provided for:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Estimated amount of coniracts remaining m_hc execnted an capital aceount (net of capital advances) and not 111 R
provided fur
{b) Contingent liabilities
-{Particulars March 31,2025 | - March 31,2024 |- - - oo
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
- Litigation matters with respect o direct taxes 20.49 2049
- Litigation matters with respect indirect taxes 2542 26.14
Other money far which the Company is cantingently liahie * 2. 52,07
97.98 98.70

Total
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* The ESIC Binnypet, has issued the Ex-party order w's 45A for the year 2015-2016 of Rs. 5.2Cr and the same has been has been challenged in High
Court, Kamataka.

The Company records a liability when it is both probable that a {oss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably cstimated. Significant judgment is
required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Company reviews these provisions perioclically and adjusts these provisions
accerdingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of tegal counsel, and updated information. The Company believes that the amount
or estimable range of reasonably possible toss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business, financial position,
results of the Company, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2025.

Disputed claims against the Company, including claims raised by the tax authorities and which are pending in appeal /court and for which no reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, are rot provided for in the accounts, However, the present obligation, if any, as a result of past
events with a possibility of outflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognized in the accounts as an expense as and when such obligation
crystallises.

32. Events occurring after the balance sheet date
There were no significant events that occurred after the Balance Sheet date.

...33. Operating segment -

The Company is required to disclose segment information based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, which in
how the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) evaluates the Compary’s performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of the various
performance indicators. In the case of the Company, the CODM reviews the results of the Company as a whole as the Company is primarily engaged in
the business of rendering facility management services in India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company. The
information as required under Ind AS 108 is available directly from the financial statements, hence no separate disclosures have been made.

No customer accounted for greater than 10% ot revenue in carrent and pravious financial year
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SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, unless stated otherwise

36. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financiai liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support the financing of the operations of its
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents that
derive direcily from its operations, Joans, security and other deposits.

The Company’s aperations expase it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is {0 reduce volatility in financial statements
while maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Company’s business ptan along with reasonable participation in market movement.
It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk

Market risk i3 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
mainly comprises currency risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and depuosits
given, FVTOCT investments and derivative firancial instruments.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ffows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates which
. arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the.functional currency of the respective entities and foreign currency revenue

und cash (tows, The Company’s exposure to the 7isk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily o the Company’s operating

activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Company

has limited foreign curreney transactions and has limited exposure to foreign currency assets and liabilities resulting in the foreign currency risk being

low.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the future. Consequently,
the results of the Company’s operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currenioy risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

Purdealars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Foreign Currency Risk in INR . usp UsD
Financial liabilities ‘ - -

Net exposure to foreign currency risk - -

?:';ssl:::s!itt)i(vity of profit ar loss to change in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign exchange denominated financial instmmeﬂts are as follows:
Particulars ' Impact on profit after tax
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Sensitivity
INR/USD-Increase by 5% - -
INR/USD-Drecrease by 5% - -

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including various revolving and ether lines of credit. Interest rate risk is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wili fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The exposure of the Company s borrowing to interesi rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows;

Tarticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Variable rate borrowings:

- Loan repayble on demand 82487 691.37
- Loans 248.50 209.42

Fixed rate horrowi;

-{~-Bonds/ Debentures- -

-32.1594 - - - 72923
{-"Vehicle loan . e . .. . . . e e e . 419 1- N 429
- Others ' - 91.90

Total 1,109.71 1,026.21




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Service Master Clean Limited)

All amounts in INR million, uniess stated otherwise

The Company’s fixed sate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are, therefore,not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind-AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2.68 225
(2.68) (2.25)

Particulars

Interest rates = increase by 25 basis points *

Tnterest rates = decrease by 25 basis points *

*Holding all other variables constant

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The primary
exposure to credit risk arises from Trade receivables and Unbilled sevenue. These are unsecured and are managed by the Company through a system of
periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the firancial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of histarical
bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. There is one customer which accounted for more than 10% of trade receivables during the year ended

_.Mareh 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024

There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Company uses the ECL method to assess the loss allowance for Trade receivables and Unbilled
revenue taking inte account primarily the historical trends and analysis of bad debts. The Cempany does not expect any credit risk or impairment in
respect of amounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, if any.

The credit sk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered low.

Significant estimates and judgements
Impairment of financial assets

" The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Compa.ny
hi

uses judgement in makmg these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impaimment calculatmn hased on the Company’s p

poe

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury depariment in accordance with the Company’s
policy. Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed deposits or used to temporarily reduce the balance of cash credit accounts to optimize inteTest costs.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obfigations associated with financial liabilities. The Company
consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources of funding to meet its financial obligations and maintain

adequate liquidity for use

" The below table summarises the Cnmpany s long=term debt that will mature in less than one year based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected

in the financial statements.

FParticulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Company’s long-tertn debt 284.84 334.84

Company’s long-term debt that will mature in less than one year from reporting period 3.64 102.19
1.28% 30.52%

The Company has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a
sufficient variety of sources of funding and significant portion of short-term debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.
The Company believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash aceruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations.

The table below summaries the maturity profite of the Compary’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments,

Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars On demand] Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years =5 years Total
months
|Bowowings . i L B2ART 24.85) . . L6867} . L2087 I e 12656
_{Lease liability - - . et o= . 1.52 e 4.16 e 1164 286 - 2019
Other financial liabilities - 542.04 - - - 542,04
Trade payables - 96.22 - - - 96,22
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 to 2 months| 1 to 5 years > 5 years| Total
months
Borrowinga 691.37 2832 23348 13.82 19.00 1,045,900
Léase liability ; - ; B R T FETE R T 1 %
Other financial liabilities - 488.98 - - - 488.98
Trade payables - 8R.73 - - - $3.73

As a matter of policy, the Company does not carry out any hedging activity.

_ There has been no default in servicing borrowings and/ or breaches in loan covenants.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited
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Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow mevements are disclesed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows:

Year ended March 31, 2025 -

As at April 1, As at March 31,
Balance sheet caption 2024 Cash flow Finance cost Others 2025
Bormrowings 334.84 (52.94) 295 - 234.85
Interest accrued - (106.97) 106,97 - -
Year ended March 31, 2024

As at April 1, As at March 3,
Balanee sheet caption 2023 Cash flow Finance cost Others 2024
Borrawings 253.05 74.12 2.67 - 334.84
Interest accrued - (t19.66) 119.66 - -

...The entity has the following financiat assets which are subject 1o the impairment requirements of Ind AS [09. On assessment of the future cash flows
arising from these assets, the Company belicves that there is no provision required to be made for impairment losses on these assets,

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

HFinancial assets:

[nvestments 56.06 52.59

Loans - 17.00

Other financial asaets 80742 899.44
| Total B63.48 969.03

37

A. Additional capital disclosures

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and support its
strategies and operating requirements. The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure
with a focus on total equity to upheld investor, creditor, and custorner confiderce and to ensure future development of its business. The Company
" determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements
for the Company’s operations are generally met through operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings

from banks.

The Company’s ohjectives when managing capital are to:

a) safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments it light of changes in economic conditions and the requirernents of the financial
covenants to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company detines
Net Debt as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations, but including bank balances and deposits irrespective of

their duration / maturity.

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2G24
Borrowings (Nete [3) 1,109.71 1,026.21
1.ease liabilicy 16.11 2.90
Cuashe winl vash eyuivalents (Note 12), other bank bafances and deposits (ineluding margin money) (549.78) (295.70)
Net Debe : 576.04 733.41
EBITDA 346.35 320.76
[Nt debt tr ERTTI radin (E]] AL

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it simultaneously meets financial

covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the finarcial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There

‘have been o breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current period.




SMC Integrated Facility Management Solutions Limited
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B. Financial ratios

Ratio Numerstor Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 % variance
Current ratio Cument asset Curent liabilities 1.46 136 2%
Debt-equity ratio Total debt Shareholders’ equity 0.58 061 -3.95%
Debt Service Coverage ratio | Earning befor interest and taxes Debt service * 236 Li9 95.23%
Return on equity ratio ! Net profits after taxes Average shareholders' equity 11.82% 31.18% 271.21%
Trade receivables tumover mtic Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 601 6,00 011%
Inventory tumever ratio - Cost of goods sold Average inventory N 100.80 -29.85%
Trade payables turnover ratio Cast of poods sold Average trade payables 228 252 -0.41%
Net capial turnover ratio Revenue from operations Working capital 1077 1254 -14.16%
vt profic Ttio ' Net profils after taxes ‘Revenue from operations” BN B OBa%| T 263.01%|
Return on capital employed Earning befor interest and taxes Capital employed ** 10.96% 10,13% 8.22%
The Company has not invested in other than investments in associates
Return on investment and fellow subsidiaries, hence Raturn on Investment ratio has not been - -
disclosed.

1. The mtios have been optimized due to optimal working capital management, increase in turnover and tax benefit (PY tax expense) during the current

financial year

-2, 'The rise Ih wrnover during the year has-driven-a corresponding increase in-purchases and (eade payubles, whicl: bas inl}ucnccd Ure respective ratios

*Debt service = Interest expense + current maiurities of long-term debt
** Capital employed = Total equity + Net debt

C. The disclosures required under Division T of Schedule 111 have been given to the extent applicable to the Company.

As per our report of even date

ForBSR&CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Fitm's Registration, No. 101248W/W-10022)

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

w\i

CA'Amrit Bhansali
Pariner
Membership No. 065155

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 30,2025

Pate: AprH 28, 2025

TS

Rivoli Sinha Rituraj Kishere Sinha
Managing Director Directer

{DIN; 05124090) {DIN: 00477256)
Place: Singapore Place: New Delhi

Date: April 28,2025

-

Date: April 28,2025

Brajefh Kumar Komar Kaddu
Chief financial officer Companry Secretary
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Dtes Anril 28, 20235




